
 

 

 -1- 

 

 SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
FEBRUARY 26, 2015 

 

Present: 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer     Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary       General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner      

Thomas Good, Commissioner          

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

              

Absent:   

 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:03 A.M., with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, and Commissioner Santana-Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance.   

  

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the January 29th, 2015, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Vice Chair Ryan and carried 

unanimously by those present. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Good, and Commissioner Goggin joined the meeting at 
approximately 8:07 A.M. 
 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. PRESENTATION OF FINAL SBDD FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 BY BARRY FINK, CPA  

 

District Director Hart stated that the final report of the SBDD Financial Statements for the 

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2014 was prepared by the District’s accounting firm, 

Margolies, Fink and Wichrowski, Certified Public Accounts (MFW), and that Barry Fink, 

CPA was present at the meeting to present the report.   

 

Mr. Fink stated that there had been a minor change to the report from the previous meeting.  

He said that the State’s checklist for the Audit Report includes a new line item which is 

required this year, called an “Attestation Opinion”.  This states that the investment policies of 



 

 

 -2- 

 

the District are in compliance with the policies that are established by SBDD.  There were no 

other changes to the report.  
 
Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of Final SBDD Financial Statement for the 
Fiscal Year ending September 30, 2014 subject to adding the last page of the Financial 
Statement as referred to by Mr. Fink before submitting to the State.  Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Santana-Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

 

B. UPDATE TO DISTRICT CRITERIA MANUAL 

 

District Director Hart presented a draft copy of the proposed update the District’s Criteria 

Manual to the Board for review.  He reviewed several changes and additions that are 

proposed for the Criteria Manual for the Board’s comments/input.   

 

The following specific points on the proposed update to the Criteria Manual were discussed: 

 

 Overall, the Criteria Manual has been reorganized to provide a clearer distinction 

between development and residential permit requirements, design criteria, permitting, 

5-year recertification program, platting, variances, easements, fees, and other issues. 

 Much of the information is remaining the same with specific additions and 

clarifications. 

 The list of Exhibits has been updated and reorganized.  Exhibits were added for all 

SBDD permit forms; permit checklists; and permit flow charts.  SBDD’s standard 

details were updated and new details were added. 

 An Appendix has been added that includes all SBDD standard easement forms; 

SBDD standard agreement forms; SBDD basin characteristics; 5-year drainage 

recertification guidelines and forms; and surface water management area designation 

and declaration of restrictive covenants form.  

 A new fee schedule was presented with a side-by-side comparison between current 

and proposed fees.  The proposed fees are based on the time and effort required by 

District staff to process the various permits and approvals.  Many of the current fees 

are not changing. 

 References have been added to the District’s Facilities Report and Water Control 

Plan. 

 A reference has been added to the latest edition of the State’s Environmental 

Resource Permit Applicant’s Handbook. 

 A section was added to provide information on the District’s Board meetings and the 

public’s opportunity to speak. 

 A clarification was added that the Criteria Manual will apply to all properties and 

developments within SBDD. 

 A section was added on Definitions and Terms. 

 A section was added on the requirements for all development and redevelopment 

projects to enter into a Maintenance & Indemnification Agreement with SBDD, and 

with a reference to the Appendix. 

 A clarification was added that parking lots will need to meet the 10-yr, 3-day stage. 

 Language was added that all properties must provide a minimum surface water 

management area and basin storage as specified in the District’s Facility Report and 

Water Control Plan. 

 Additional provisions were added under water quality. 

 Language was added specifying that pretreatment requirements will apply to roadway 



 

 

 -3- 

 

projects and proposed development projects with greater than 60% impervious area. 

 Language was added requiring concrete aprons and restricting the use of the edge of 

pavement as a flow line. 

 A section was added on the basin storage requirements and allowing basin 

improvements in lieu of basin storage upon approval by the District Director. 

 Language was added to clarify between Pollution Retardant Basins and Pollution 

Retardant Baffles. 

 Language was added to require access structures at the ends of exfiltration trenches. 

 Additional provisions were added for headwalls and the requirements for increased 

erosion protection as determined by the District Engineer.  

 A section was added for guardrails per Broward County criteria. 

 A section was added for residential driveway canal crossings with a reference to the 

new detail. 

 A section was added for utility permits and crossings of District water bodies. 

 Language was added on utility work within SBDD easement areas and the 

requirements for an initial user fee and an annual user fee. 

 Language was added on wetland plantings behind residential homes. 

 Additional language and clarifications were added on easement and right-of-way 

dedications with a reference to the Appendix. 

 A clarification was made on work without permits to be assessed twice the permit 

fee. 

 Additional language and clarifications were made on permit application submittals, 

reviews and the approval process. 

 A section was added on e-permitting. 

 An new chapter was added on the District’s 5-year recertification program. 

 Language was added to reference the County’s new process for plat approval.  The 

District will now only require one signature on plats (by the District Director). 

 Language was added in reference to coconut palms and restricting their use within 20 

feet of water bodies. 

 A separate chapter was added for Variances and Appeals. 

 Language was added under variances and appeals to allow the District Director to 

grant approvals of minor deviations or variations from the District Criteria. 

 Language was added to allow encroachments within lake maintenance easements 

provided that a minimum of 16 feet is maintained from the edge of water to the 

encroachment (as measured from the control water elevation). 

 A new chapter was added for Residential Permitting. 

 Language was added to clarify the requirement for 20% surface water management 

areas within SW Ranches properties with an allowance for equivalent storage. 

 Language was added under fees allowing the District Director to waive permit fees 

for governmental agencies, but requiring a minimum review fee of $250; and to 

waive permit fees for residential permits based upon individual and unique 

circumstances. 

 

The following comments were provided by Board members and the District Director: 

 

 Add definitions for “development” and “redevelopment”. 

 Verify with the District’s outside attorney that there are no restrictions in applying 

user fees for “public” utilities (as opposed to “private” utility companies) for use of 

District easement of right-of-way areas. 



 

 

 -4- 

 

 Specify that any deviation or variation in excess of 10% from the District criteria 

shall require Board approval. 

 Consider adding a description on certain types of landscaping as being “hazardous” 

or “a nuisance”. 

 

Following the discussion by Board members on the draft update, District Director Hart 

suggested that a Public Hearing be scheduled at the next Board meeting in March on the 

proposed update to the SBDD Criteria Manual; and if there were no further substantial 

changes or comments that needed to be addressed, then a Resolution for adoption of the 2015 

Update to the SBDD Criteria Manual could be made at the March meeting. Chair Hodges 

commented that a Resolution should be placed on the Agenda for March; and it was agreed 

upon by the Board members. 

 

C. OTHER 

 

 South Florida Water Management Cooperative Funding Program- District Director 

Hart said that South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) established a co-

operative funding program this year. He said that the District submitted two projects for 

funding and SFWMD has released some preliminary rankings on the funding request.  

The District received a “1” ranking on its projects, which is the second tier ranking by 

SFWMD.  The District also coordinated with SWR on a drainage and water quality 

project at the north end of Dykes Road and they received a “1A” ranking; which is the 

highest ranking a project can receive.  He said that there is a good chance that project 

will go on to phase two.  District Director Hart said that additional information would 

need to be provided and then a final decision will be made.  He said that if this project 

gets funded, it would be scheduled for the next fiscal year, and that there would be 

shared funding for the project.  He commented that there may be a request for the 

District to participate, and if so, he will be bringing this before the Board for approval.   

 

District Director Hart submitted two requests for SBDD projects: one was for the SW 

54th Place culvert installation, and the second was to install a by-pass culvert and sluice 

gate at the S-8 pump station.  He said that each of these projects received a rating of “1” 

which is the second tier rating.  He said that chances are those two will not move ahead, 

because they are strictly stormwater/drainage projects, and there is no water quality 

component.  He said the District will continue to push for funding. 

    

 Proposed Program for Water Quality Testing Initiative – District Director Hart said 

that he is working on a proposed program for Water Quality Testing that would include 

the District and the municipalities that would be potentially impacted by the Broward 

County Water Preserve Area project.  He said there was an initial meeting with Miramar 

and Pembroke Pines to discuss conceptually the need and importance of establishing a 

baseline for water quality along the perimeter of the water area preserve project, and to 

include the cities that would be impacted as well.  He will try to prepare a draft 

plan/program to be shared with all the cities involved.   

 

 Water Matters Day- The 13th Annual Water Matters Day will be held March 14, 2015 at 

9:00 a.m. To 3:00 p.m. at Tree Top Park.   

 

 Broward Days – Broward Days will be held on March 25-26, 2015. 

 



 

 

 -5- 

 

 Hotwire Agreement – District Director Hart said that the Hotwire Agreement is very 

close to being finalized and recorded.  He said that the District has been working on it 

since it was approved by the Board; and that SBDD has received payment.  District 

Director Hart stated he is working on the last two exhibits.  He is confident that it will 

be completed within the next 30 days.   

  
05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  
 
 None. 
  
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Mersinger and it was carried unanimously. 

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

   

   Commissioner Mersinger commented that she went to the kick-off meeting for the Broward Days 

and one of the issues brought up by the speakers was “Water”.  She suggested that District 

Director Hart attend Broward Days and represent the District to speak about water issues, and the 

possibility of getting funding, and other criteria issues because this is a very big issue this year.  

 

   Commissioner Good commented that funding this year will probably not be available.  He did, 

however, agree with Commissioner Mersinger that discussing water issues and other criteria 

issues is a very good point; and also to educate the legislation about the impoundment project and 

water quality profiling, and the possibility of water quality being impacted in a negative way.   

 

   Commissioner Mersinger said that she and District Director Hart attended the C-51 Reservoir 

Project meeting and that the Resolution was passed.  She said that it all boils down to “who will 

be paying”.   

 

   Commissioner Goggin commented on the importance of coordinating with the local cities on 

landscaping and other issues.  District Director Hart stated that the District has a good working 

relationship with the cities and they understand the District’s concerns and hopefully the District 

will continue to work with them on specific trees and hazards to the drainage system.   

        

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, March 26th at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 9:40 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

/rim 














































































